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Request for Proposals – Provide National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) Environmental 

Analysis for the Okanogan-Wenatchee National Forest – Manastash-Taneum Restoration Project  

RESPONSE TO OFFERORS’ QUESTIONS 

Last Revised: 11/7/2017 

 

RFP SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS 

1. Please confirm that resumes are not part of the 6-page proposal max length.  

Yes, that is correct. Resumes should be provided in addition to the 6-page Technical Proposal as either an attachment 

or appendix. 

 

2. Should we leave the ‘optional bid items’ (3.5.5, 3.5.6, 3.5.7, 3.6.4, 3.6.5) on the Cost Proposal Template blank or do 

we need to provide a lump sum subtotal? 

In order to remain competitive in the RFP process, we highly recommend that you provide a subtotal cost for every 

optional bid item. In the Cost Proposal Template, these line items include 3.5.5, 3.5.6, 3.5.7, 3.6.4, and 3.6.5. 

 

STATEMENT OF WORK 

1. In the Statement of Work, under the Fish Biologist section and in the budget section (3.5.6) it talks to completing 

wood assessments. We are uncertain as to the application of this information for the NEPA analysis. In our 

experience, this level of information is not needed and could substantially increase the cost and field time to complete 

the project planning. Please clarify that this is really necessary.  

This item is listed as a separate bid item on the bid sheet. Please provide a separate bid for this item as we reserve the 

right to separate this work from the proposal and have the work completed by others. 

 

2. In the Overview section it states that the period of performance will be 18 months from the contract start date and in 

the timeline it states the Contractor’s approximate start date is 1 January 2018. However, in the Statement of Work, 

under the Botanist section it states that “Forest areas that contain old growth characteristics will need two years of two 

fall and two spring surveys for fungi.” These two time periods don’t seem to match up. Please clarify. 

If these survey are needed, the timeline for the period of performance will be adjusted accordingly. These surveys will 

only be needed if treatments are proposed in areas that contain old growth characteristics. 

 

3. In RFP [Statement of Work]: Section 3.14.1: Second sentence is incomplete. Please provide the intended complete 

sentence. 

The second sentence should read: Specialist will provide a detailed Affected Environment and Environmental 

Consequences section. 

 

4. Please provide a map of the proposed project area. 

Refer to Page 2 of the “Manastash‐Taneum Resilient Landscapes Project: Landscape Evaluations and Prescriptions” 

document for a map of the proposed project area. 
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5. What are the expected acreages of restoration activities on National Forest lands? 

Please refer to the “Manastash-Taneum Resilient Landscapes Project: Field Reconnaissance of National Forest – 

Landscape Treatment Areas” and “Manastash‐Taneum Resilient Landscapes Project: Landscape Evaluations and 

Prescriptions” documents for further information. 

 

6. Please confirm that a landscape analysis has been conducted, pursuant to the OWNF [Okanogan-Wenatchee National 

Forest] Restoration Strategy, from which landscape level prescriptions provide the basis for restoration activities on 

Federal lands. Please confirm data from this analysis are available to the contractor. 

Yes. A landscape evaluation has been conducted. Please refer to the “Manastash-Taneum Resilient Landscapes 

Project: Landscape Evaluations and Prescriptions” document for further information.  

 

7. Has a forest-wide transportation analysis been conducted? Are INFRA data available? 

INFRA data is available. The Minimum Roads Analysis has been completed for the Okanogan-Wenatchee National 

Forest, but travel analysis needs to be completed on an individual project basis. 

 

8. Please confirm scales and flight dates of aerial photos available through the OWNF [Okanogan-Wenatchee National 

Forest]. 

Aerial photography flown in 2012, digital stereo-photos, 4 band 8-bit & 4 band 16 bit. A more or less standard sidelap 

of 30%, endlap 60%, late summer/early fall, a nominal 25cm GSD (that may be 30 cm). 

 

9. Area LiDAR data sets available for this project area? 

 

Yes, LiDAR data should be available in February. 

 

10. What is the anticipated availability of FS [Forest Service] resource specialists? Will they inspect the resource 

specialist reports? 

Forest Service resource specialist will review the resource specialist reports, along with the District Environmental 

Coordinator. Forest Service resource specialists will be available for these reviews as well as at specific touch points 

throughout the project. They will also be available to answer questions that can be submitted through Washington 

RC&D and the Forest Service Project Coordinator. 

 

11. Has Kittitas County prepared wildfire protection plan, and if so, are those data available? 

Yes. The Kittitas County Wildfire Protection Plan was adopted in 2009. This plan is due for an update which will be 

overseen by the Kittitas County Conservation District. The 2009 version can be accessed at 

https://www.dnr.wa.gov/publications/rp_burn_cwpp_kittitasco.pdf. 

 

12. Who is the Responsible Official? 

Cle Elum District Ranger, Michelle Capp. 
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13. Does the Statement of Work reflect the Responsible Official’s objectives for this project? 

Yes, and the Responsible Official reviewed the Statement of Work. 

 

14. Is there a [PIL] Project Initiation Letter? 

No. 

 

15. Who is the Forest Service representative?  

Cle Elum Ranger District Environmental Coordinator, Darren Goodding. Washington RC&D is the primary point of 

contact/liaison between the contractor and the Forest Service. 

  

16. In the Statement of Work, it does not specifically define who is responsible for reviewing, providing feedback and 

approving the contractor’s work for meeting NEPA sufficiency. Are there predetermined inspectors reviewing and 

approving specialists’ reports and other NEPA documentation? If so, who will be inspecting the aforementioned 

documents? What is the expected turnaround time for review by inspectors? 

Please refer to the Statement of Work, Section 5.1(i-k) which states the Forest Service Project Coordinator is 

responsible for: 

i. Inspecting the quality of the analysis and specialist's reports and providing inspection results to the Contracting 

Representative. 

j. Reviewing the documentation (specialist's reports, NEPA documents, BEs/BAs, and RAR) to ensure it is concise, 

complete, and adequate for the decision to be made. 

k. Inspecting the Contractor's analysis and documentation to ensure it complies completely with the requirements of 

NEPA and CEQ Regulations. 

The Project Coordinator will utilize Forest Service resource specialists to assist in reviewing specialists reports and 

will expect to keep the turnaround time for review to less than two weeks. 

 

17. Who will facilitate the public meetings? Is the contractor expected to be in front of the public facilitating the meeting, 

or would the Forest Service be leading and facilitating? 

The Forest Service will be leading and facilitating any public meetings. The contractor would be expected to attend to 

provide support for the meeting, have specialists available for questions, etc. 

 

18. Is the scope identified in the Statement of Work for NEPA Environmental Analysis on federal lands only? 

Yes. This Statement of Work is for federal lands only. 

 

19. Use of money on non-federal lands is not a connected action? 

Not a connected action because actions on non-federal lands are not part of this proposed project. 
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20. In Statement of Work, under the Fish Biologist section (3.5.6) is wood considered a limiting factor or is this just a 

standard operating procedure? 

At this point, wood is not considered a limiting factor.  

 

21. Several items are requested via paper form, i.e.) Project Record, Specialist Reports, NEPA documentation, etc. Would 

it be possible to submit some documentation electronically? If so, what specific documents can be submitted 

electronically? 

Yes, the majority of documentation can be submitted electronically. Items that would need paper copies in addition to 

electronic version would be documents with original signatures, etc. 

 

22. Is the contractor responsible for drafting media releases and press releases? Please clarify what the contractor’s 

involvement in this process will be. 

The contractor will work in coordination with the Forest Service to develop the content for media and press releases. 

All media and press releases will be reviewed by Forest Service Public Affairs staff and approved by Responsible 

Official before release. 

 

23. Please confirm if additional areas on the project area map will be added to the Statement of Work. 

There are no additional areas outside the designated Manastash-Taneum Restoration Project boundary that will be 

added to the Statement of Work. 

 

24. Can you confirm that there is a lot of LSR [Late Successional Reserves] lands in the project area? 

Yes.  

 

25. Are there any known Northern Spotted Owls in the project area? 

Yes. 

 

26. What are the aquatic restoration goals for this project? 

“Aquatic restoration projects will focus on improving watershed conditions, functions, and processes and restoring the 

complex aquatic habitats that contribute to the recovery of federally listed fish. Specifically, this includes restoring 

habitat connectivity between headwater tributaries, stream channels, floodplains, wetlands, and riparian vegetation 

and reducing road and stream interactions to improve aquatic habitat function, in‐stream flow and sediment regimes, 

water quality, and biological functions (spawning, rearing, foraging, and migration). Aquatic restoration also includes 

improving natural stream channel floodplain access to restore the timing, variability, and duration of floodplain 

inundation.” (Manastash‐Taneum Resilient Landscapes Project: Landscape Evaluations and Prescriptions, p. 4).  

Also refer to “Manastash-Taneum Resilient Landscapes Supplemental Aquatic and Riparian Landscape Evaluation for 

North Fork Taneum Creek” and the “Wenatchee Forest Land and Resource Management Plan and Record of Decision 

(1990 Forest Plan), as amended by the Record of Decision for Amendments to Forest Service and Bureau of Land 

Management Planning Documents Within the Range of the Northern Spotted Owl (Northwest Forest Plan, 1994), 

including the Aquatic Conservation Strategy (ACS). 
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27. Since the Manastash-Taneum Restoration Project is an all hands, all lands project, when will cumulative effects be 

looked at? 

From Forest Service Handbook (FSH) 1909.15 (15.1): “Cumulative effects analysis shall be carried out in accordance 

with 40 CFR 1508.7 and in accordance with The Council on Environmental Quality Guidance Memorandum on 

Consideration of Past Actions in Cumulative Effects Analysis dated June 24, 2005.”  Incorporating cumulative effects 

will require an enlightened use of the scoping process. 

 

28. Can contractor fulfill Scenery Management tasks in part through use of VQO (Visual Quality Objective) data found in 

the Northwest Forest Plan? 

Yes, in part, through use of VQO from the Wenatchee Forest Land and Resource Management Plan and Record of 

Decision (1990 Forest Plan), as amended by the Record of Decision for Amendments to Forest Service and Bureau of 

Land Management Planning Documents Within the Range of the Northern Spotted Owl (Northwest Forest Plan, 

1994). The contractor will need to use the Forest Plan for VQO’s which is based on the Visual Management System 

(VMS) system and tie in Scenery Management System (SMS) for current terminology related to constituent input and 

sense of place. 

 

 

 

 

 


